
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
FORTIETH SESSION 

Offkial Rtcords* 

FIFTH COMMITTEE 
44th meeting 

held on 
Thursday, 21 November 1985 

at 3 p.m. 
New York 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 44th MEETING 

C~airmana Mr. TOMMO ~ONTHE (Cameroon) 

Chairman of the Advisory Committee on Administrative 
and Budgetary Questionsa Mr. MSELLE 

CONTENTS 

AGENDA ITEM 124a UNITED NATIONS COMMON SYSTEMa REPORT OF THE INTERNATION~L CIVIL 
SERVICE COM.\USSION (continued) 

AGENDA ITEM 125a UNITED NATIONS PENSION SYSTEM: REPORT OF THE UNITED NATIONS 
JOINT STAFF PENSION BOARD (continued) 

85-57936 8740S (E) 

Distr. GENERAL 
A/C.S/40/SR.44 
25 November 1985 

ORIGINAL; ENGLISH 

I . .. 



A/C.5/40/SR.44 
English 
Page 2 

The m~~~~~~ was cal l ed to order at 3.30 p. m. 

AGENDA ITEM 124: UNITED NATIONS COMMON SYSTEMs REPORT OF THE I NTERNATIONAL CIVIL 
SERVICE COMMISSION (continued) (A/40/30 and A/40/653 and Add.ll A/C.S/ 40/26, 
A/C.S/40/41, A/C.5/40/44 and A/C.S/40/45 and Corr.l) 

AGE NDA ITEM 125: UNITED NATIONS PENSION SYSTEMs REPORT OF THE UNITED NAT IONS 
JOINT STAFF PENSION BOARD (continued) (A/40/9 and A/40/848J A/C.S/40/24 and 
A/C.S/40/41) 

l. Mr. OMURA (Japan) said that measures to improve the actuarial imbalance of the 
Unit ed Nations Joint Staff Pension Fund always provoked heated discuss ion. A 
la s ting solution, therefore, required an objective and i mpartial approach. In 
particular, it had to be decided whether the outflow from the Pension Fund was 
being adequately managed, for even if a constant inflow of income was obta ined by 
securing a healthy return on investments and by raising the rate of contribution, 
the Fund could not be sustained over a long period unle ss prope r c ontrol was 
exercised over pension benefits. 

2 . In view of the technical nature of the questions involved, it would be 
advisabie for the General As sembly to respect, as far as pos sible, the 
r ecommendations of the Pension Board and ICSC concerning the scale of pen s ionable 
r emuneration, the method for calculating the lump-s um commutat i on of benef its, the 
imposition o f ceilings on the highest levels of pens ions a nd t he two- t rack 
adjustment system. The basic is s ue, on which dec is ion s r egarding t hose ma tter s 
depend ed and on which no consensus had been reached, was what constitut ed an 
adequate and desirable level of pension be ne fit s . 

3. It was natural that pension bene fits s hould be fix ed at a lowe r level than 
fina l sa l a ry before retirement. Generally spe a king, th e pur pose o f a pens ion 
s cheme was t o provide financial security in old ag e , wh e r eas a snlary , f r om which 
taxes and social security contributions we r e rl erlucted , was inte nd ed to s upport t he 
worker, together with any dependants , during the pe r iod of active life. In those 
t e rms , the United Nations pe nsion scheme was fo r the mos t par t too ge ne rou s and in 
some respects s uperfluou s . Staff membe r s who r e tir ed a ft er 15 year s of 
contributory service at the Under-S ecr e tary-Gene ral l eve l, for e xampl e , r eceived 
pe ns i on be nefits approximately equiva l e nt to their fin a l sa l a r y be for e r e tirement. 
Mor eove r, the current system particularly favour e d higher-leve l s taff me mbers. It 
s hould be asked wh e ther such was t he case in the compa r a tor se rvic e . 

4. The re was a need for s er iou s di scuss ion - a nd no t a me r e excha nge of 
opinions - on what constitut ed a n ad equat e or nec essa ry l eve l o f pe ns ion bene fits. 
Such a discussion must not be pe rmitted to d egene r a t e i nto the us ua l parti sa n 
wr angl e , but should be based on f acts . To tha t e nd, h i s de l egation sug ges t ed that 
ICSC and UNJ SPB carry out a comparative s tudy of t he le ve ls of pe ns ion benefits and 
the r~tios o f pe nsi ons to sal a ri es und e r the United Nation s pe ns ion scheme and in 
the comparator service. Suc h a s tudy could be und e rta ken in conjunction with the 
ongo ing effort to develop a new methodology for dete rmining pe ns ionabl e 
remune ra tion. 

. .. 



A/C.S/40/SR.44 
English 
Page 3 

(Mr. O~~ra, Japan) 

5. A unique feature of the United Nations scheme was that staff members were 
eligible to receive pension entitlements after only five years of contributory 
service. How staff members with relatively short contributory service should be 
treated was another important question that must be reviewed. Moreover, existing 
pension benefits were neither progressive nor retrogressive. It should be possible 
to devise a scheme under which benefits grew slowly after the average length of 
service, i.e. 20 to 25 years. 

6. The recommendations of UNJSPB on pension ceilings, lump-sum commutations and 
the two-track adjustment system would have to be re-examined if such a fundamental 
study was carried out. Accordingly, a final decision on those questions should be 
deferred until that study had been completed and the underlying issues had been 
resolved. It would be advisable, moreover, to await information on the new pension 
scheme proposed for the United States federal civil service, since all the 
questions now under discussion were closely related. 

7. Another problem was that of compensatory or interim measures applicable to 
participants whose pensionable remuneration had been lowered as at 1 January 1985. 
His delegation felt that equal burden-sharing among past, present and future 
participants, and also within each of those groups, was of importance in the 
management of the pension scheme. Under the measures recommended by UNJSPB, the 
new pensionable remuneration scale was applied only prospectively, and participants 
in service prior to 1 January 1985 could collect higher pension benefits despite 
paying a lower rate of contributions. On the other hand, in the future, retirees 
beginning their service after 1985 would receive lower pension benefits, even 
though they were obliged to contribute at a higher rate. 

8. Moreover, two thirds of the Pension Fund was financed by Member States, many 
of which, because of serious financial constraints, were trying to streamline their 
public pension schemes. The need for compensatory or interim measures depended, as 
did other issues referred to above, on whether existing benefits could be 
considered adequate and reasonably close to levels outside the United Nations 
system. 

9. The proposed increase in the contribution rate needed to be discussed in the 
context of the overall review of the United Nations pension scheme. His delegation 
was aware that UNJSPB had submitted a package of recommendations after conducting 
an in-depth review. Under the circumstances, the Fifth Committee could offer a 
tentative judgement on those recommendations, which would apply until such time as 
it received a more comprehensive report on the basic questions of adequate levels 
of Pension benefits and desirable ratios of pension benefits to salaries. If the 
Committee chose to proceed in that manner, even though the Pension Board had not 
Provided a technical basis for discussion, it would also be necessary to impose a 
reasonable ceiling on high lump-sum commutations, without reducing total benefits. 

10 • In conclusion, he referred to the recommendation to r~ise the mandatory age of 
separation to 62. His delegation wished to reiterate its position that that 

/ ... 



A/C.S/40/SR.44 
English 
Page 4 

(Mr. Omura, Japan) 

question should be discussed in the context of overall personnel management, and 
not simply as a pension issue. Important personnel policy measures such as the 
improvement of staff representation in the Secretariat and career development were 
currently being implemented and it was still premature, therefore, to raise the 
mandatory age of separation, which might adversely affect progress towards balanced 
geographical distribution and career development, for example through internal 
promotion. 

11. Mr. ZACHAROV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) said that the further 
increase recommended in the rate of contribution of Member States to the Pension 
Fund was the fundamental issue of principle to be addressed at the present session 
in connection with the report of the UNJSPB. The proper functioning of the pension 
system depended on maintaining a strict balance between the interests of 
international civil servants, the financial resources of the Pension Fund and the 
commitments of Member States. Since the early 1970s, that balance had been 
shifting exclusively in favour of staff members and the Pension Board had 
systematically introduced proposals for comprehensive liberalization of the 
system. As a result, United Nations pension amounts had more than tripled over the 
past 10 years whereas those of the comparator service had only doubled. Quite 
apart from being contrary to the Noblemaire principle, that unjustified rise had 
created an imbalance between the Fund's income and its liabilities to 
participants. The introduction of the two-track system and cost-of-living 
differentials under the so-called Washington formula had ha•l particularly negative 
effects. The Fund's actuarial imbalance had assumed a chronic character. 

12. In its resolutions 38/233 and 39/246, the General Assembly had given clear 
instructions with a view to remedying the Fund's actuarial situation. Yet the 
Pension Board had consistently chosen another path and was proposing to eliminate 
the imbalance at the expense of Member States and future pensioners. Present 
retire~s, however, whose excessively high pensions had worsened the Fund's 
situation, were taking no part whatsoever in efforts to improve matters. 
Furthermore, Member States had been deliberately misled as to possible financial 
implications, yet had to cover approximately two thirds of a deficit for which they 
bore no responsibility. The Pension Board's new recommendation would, if 
implemented, place an even greater burden on them. 

13. His delegation had not, to be frank, anticipated any other approach on the 
part of the Pension Board. The problem was that two thirds of the members of that 
body had a direct interest in the liberalization of the pension system and could 
hardly be expected to agree voluntarily to a reduction or even limitation on the 
further growth of their pensions. 

14. In accordance with article 49 of the regulations of the Pension Fund, the 
General Assembly had initiated a process of consultations with UNJSPB to examine 
ways of changing its composition in the light of the views expressed in the Fifth 
Committee concerning equitable representation on the Board. Not surprisingly, the 
Pension Board had ignored the Assembly's request t0 submit its views on that 
subject. He therefore suggested that the consultation process should be regarded 

; ... 



A/C.S/40/SR,44 
English 
Page 5 

(Mr. Zacharov, USSR) 

as having been concluded and that the General Assembly now had the right to amend 
as it deemed necessary articles 5 and 6 of the Regulations relating to membership 
of the Board. His delegation was ready to participate in consultations on that 
question in the Fifth Committee. 

15. Until further measures to reduce the Fund's actuarial imbalance had been 
considered by a reorganized Pension Board, the question of a second increase in the 
contributions of Member States to the Fund must remain open. In conclusion, his 
delegation felt bound to state that, if a decision on the Board's unjust and 
unwarranted proposal to effect another increase in the contributions of Member 
States was eventually imposed on the General Assembly, the Soviet Union might 
reconsider its financial participation in the implementation of such a decision. 

16. Ms. YIN Shichang (China) said the report of ICSC showed that the Commission 
had made great efforts over the past year to implement General Assembly 
resolutions 39/27 and 39/69 and that those efforts had yielded results. 
Considering the special nature of their work and their international recruitment, 
United Nations staff members should enjoy relatively substantial benefits to enable 
them to serve the Organization with dedication in realizing the noble objectives 
set forth in the Charter. At the same time, benefits as well as staff costs should 
be kept within reasonable limits. 

17. The Commission proposed ·a range of 110 to 120 for the net remuneration margin 
between the united Nations system and the comparator service, considering that the 
mid-point of approximately 115 would constitute a desirable level around which that 
margin should be maintained over a period of time. That proposal was consistent 
with the Noblemaire principle and took into account the views expressed by the 
General Assembly. However, in order not to overburden Member States, it was 
important to keep that margin strictly at the mid-point level. Regardless of what 
final decision was taken on the margin, her delegation also supported the 
recommendation of ICSC that no change in the post adjustment classification for New 
York should be made in 1986. 

18. As to the comparison of pensionable remuneration and benefits of the United 
Nations sys tem and the comparator service, further study was required so that a 
methodology acceptable to all parties could be devised to reflect the real 
situation and measure the margin more accurately. 

19. Resolution 39/246 called for a review of the methodology for the determination 
of pensionable remuneration for the Professional and higher categories. Since the 
present methodology had been in use for only a year and was closely linked with the 
pension system of the United States federal civil service, which was currently 
under review, that methodology should be reconsidered when more information about 
the proposed changes in the system offered by the comparator service became 
available. The automatic adjustment of pensionable remuneration could also be 
reviewed in conjunction with the present methodology for determining pensionable 
remuneration, and, for the time being, the present scale should not be adjusted. 

/ ... 



A/C.5/40/SR.44 
English 
Page 6 

(Ms. !~n Shichang, ~hina) 

20. Her delegation supported the introduction of a long-service step for 
Professional grades P-1 to P-5 for staff members who had demonstrated excellent 
performance but who it had not been possible to promote for lengthy periods. 
Uniformity within the common system was desirable in that respect. Her delegation 
also agreed with ICSC that the education grant should be limited to internationally 
recruited staff members, as originally intended. 

21. At the thirty-ninth and fortieth sessions, there had been controversy over 
staff costs and efficiency. Over the past 40 years the United Nations had done 
much to safeguard world peace and promote international co-operation, 
accomplishments which were the results of the efforts of Member States and the 
dedicated work of the staff of the Organization. There was, nevertheless, the 
potential for increased efficiency through the rational use of human, material and 
financial resources. China trusted that with efforts on the part of the staff 
members of the Secretariat progress would continue to be made. 

22. Mrs. DEREGIBUS (Argentina) said that the report of the International Civil 
Service Commission (A/40/30) demonstrated a desire on the part of ICSC, in 
accordance with the concerns expressed by the Assembly, to contain cost increases. 
The proposed continuation of the studies on total compensation indicated an intent 
to ensure that heads of United Nations organs did not have difficulty in securing 
the best staff available. The Commission's other work reflected a desire to treat 
the staff fairly, despite the difficult circumstances. 

23. Although her Government had not agreed with all of the provisions of General 
Assembly resolution 39/27, it had appreciated the suspension of the increase in 
post adjustment due in December 1984 and the measures taken to ensure equivalence 
of purchasing power at other duty stations. Her delegation was gratified that ICSC 
had not rejected the request by the staff for a technical study on the rationale 
underlying the margin between the remuneration of staff members and that of United 
States civil servants. Given current circumstances, the commission's 
recommendation of a range of 110 to 120 for the net remuneration margin, with a 
mid-point of 115, was reasonable. With regard to the methodology used for 
calculating the margin based on net remuneration, her delegation agreed with the 
Administrative Committee on Co-ordination that it would have been preferable to 
have conducted a more detailed study of the various systems of remuneration 
employed by the comparator civil service. The methodology for defining the 
elements on which comparison was to be based required further refinement. 

24. Although the margin recommended by ICSC was prudent, since its acceptance 
would affect the overall system of remuneration for the staff of the common system, 
her delegation urged the Commission to study the full spectrum of remuneration and 
benefits in both systems so as to arrive at a methodology for a comparison of total 
remuneration, including expatriate benefits and supplementary remuneration schemes 
for the General Schedule of the United States federal civil service, referred to in 
paragraph 68 of the report. 

I ... 



A/C.S/40/SR.44 
English 
Page 7 

(Mrs. Deregibus, Argen~ina) 

25. Her delegation was concerned by the situation in duty stations with negative 
or very low post adjustments. The way in which the post adjustment system was 
be~ng applied in such duty stations was creating problems for developing countries, 
whlch were frequently deprived of access to technical co-operation from countries 
with high levels of remuneration, where there was no expectation that service 
abroad would result in negative adjustments. Bilateral access to such co-operation 
was not always possible or advisable. Accordingly, the Commission should study the 
question and formulate recommendations to ensure that developing countries could 
rely on access to the best specialists through multilateral channels. 

26. Her delegation had noted with satisfaction that ICSC had devoted considerable 
attention to the status of women in the common system, and welcomed the 
recommendations designed to achieve balance, particularly at the senior and 
policy-making levels. In particular, her delegation agreed tnat the success of 
special recruitment measures would depend on the extent to which the institutional 
and attitudinal climate of organizations could be transformed. ICSC should monitor 
acceptance of its recommendations in that area. Her delegation also urged 
acceptance of the recommendations contained in paragraph 252 of the ICSC report. 

27. Argentina agreed with ICSC that medical insurance should, in general, be 
compulsory, and that coverage should be available to retired staff members. The 
Commission's recommendations on assistance for staff members with disabled 
dependants were reasonable and should be adopted. The education grant should 
continue to be restricted to expatriate staff. Her delegation also agreed that a 
long-service step should be established throughout the common system. 

28. Argentina agreed with the comments by ICSC on the first of the two JIU reports 
on staff costs. The JIU report confused questions which fell within the competence 
of ICSC with those lying within the domain of the Secretary-General, for example, 
staff associations. The Inspectors' recommendation for the establishment of an 
intergovernmental committee to supervise ICSC was astonishing, and would result in 
a misuse of resources. The recommendation could only have been made out of 
ignorance of the nature of ICSC and the situation obtaining before its 
establishment. Her delegation regretted the lack of co-ordination evidenced in the 
JIU report, and proposed that the Assembly should reaffirm the recommendation it 
had made in resolution 37/126 for all bodies to co-ordinate with ICSC before making 
Proposals on personnel matters. JIU should concentrate on its specific activities, 
rather than setting itself up as a rival to the organ responsible for questions of 
remuneration. 

29. Mr. ALI KHAN (Pakistan) said that it was gratifying that ICSC had been 
successful in translating the provisions of resolution 39/27 into a set of 
recommendations which met the concerns of all the parties. In view of the 
difficulties inherent in determining a desirable range for the margin, the 
Commission's recommendations appeared realistic. Nevertheless, definition of the 
margin should not be finalized until all doubts regarding elements of comparison 
had been removed. For the time being, the Commission should continue with the 
current methodology, but should study the possible use of average remuneration for 



'A/C. 5/40/SR. 44 
English 
Page 8 

(Mr. Ali Khan, Pakistan) 

each grade as the basis for the use of the cost-of-living differential factor 
between Washington and New York. 

30. With regard to pensionable remuneration, it should be noted that in the United 
States federal civil service, gross salaries and pensionable remuneration were 
reviewed annually. United Nations gross salaries had been reviewed every four to 
five years until 1975, but had not been changed since that date, with the exception 
of occasional consolidations of elements of post adjustment. The post adjustment 
mechanism had served to adjust United Nations remuneration in between salary 
reviews. Length of service was also an important factor which showed that an 
international civil service could not adopt a system of benefits which copied that 
of any one particular Member State. Average length of service in the United States 
federal civil service was 27 years, compared to only 20 years in the United 
Nations, and it was, therefore, appropriate that the shorter period of service 
should be compensated for in calculating the scale of pensionable remuneration. If 
decisions were taken to change benefits, the rights acquired through contributory 
service should be respected. It was only fair for staff members who had been in 
service prior to the implementation of changes to be protected by transitional 
measures so that they did not lose acquired entitlements. 

31. During the debate on the item, rhetoric had been more in evidence than 
reason. It was regrettable that JIU had once again submitted a report (A/40/653) 
to the General Assembly without observing proper procedures. His delegation failed 
to understand why the Inspectors had thought it proper to comment on issues outside 
the Unit's competence. Pakistan agreed with the Secretary-General that such 
attempts could only undermine the authority of ICSC and introduce confusion into 
the common system. ICSC worked under a clear mandate and deserved the committee's 
support, so that it could work without external pressures from any quarter. The 
Inspectors' proposal to establish a body to supervise ICSC was a non-starter. 

32. The Staff Regulations and Rules clearly enshrined the right of staff members 
to form associations, to be represented in advisory bodies and to appeal against 
administrative decisions. There were thus no grounds for questioning the propriety 
of appeals by staff members against decisions which they considered prejudicial to 
their interests. The Inspectors had attempted, in a derogatory manner, to compare 
staff associations with trade unions, claiming that they were mostly financed by 
Member States. His delegation would like to verify the veracity of that comment. 
The Inspectors had also suggested that judgements of the Administrative Tribunal 
were not final, a view which was certainly not in accord with the opinion of the 
International Court of Justice. Once ICSC had considered the JIU report, his 
delegation would like to be apprised of the range of factual and technical errors 
it contained. 

33. Mr. SINGH (Fiji) said his delegation accepted that new programmes required 
personnel to implement them and that the constant criticism to the effect that 
80 pe r cent of the budget was attributable to staff costs was not entirely fair. 
Nevertheless, Fiji was concerned at the escalation in staff costs, particularlY 
with reference to upgradings. Greater control was required. 

I ... 



A/C.5/40/SR.44 
English 
Page 9 

(Mr. Singh, Fiii) 

34. Fiji was not convinced that all areas of expenditure were as urgent today as 
when originally authorized. New priorities should replace less important ones, and 
not merely be added on, so that the budget could be contained within acceptable 
limits. 

35. In the face of current economic difficulties, most countries had imposed 
restraints on salary increases. His delegation could not therefore sit idly by in 
the face of ever-increasing staff costs. Remuneration had escalated beyond 
reasonable limits. In particular, United Nations pensions exceeded those available 
in the United States federal civil service. It must surely be possible to keep 
staff costs within reasonable limits without affecting programmes. 

The meeting rose at 4.45 P·~· 




